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Report of Independent Auditors 

The Bp^d of Directors 
Warner L. Thomas, Chief Executive Officer 
Scott Posecai, Chief Fin^cial Officer 
Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Report on the FinancialStatements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ochsner Health System 
and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2013, and 
the related consolidated ^tements.of operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the 
year then ended and the related notes to the consolidated finahciial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated 
financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated fmancial statements that are free of material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated fin^cial.^tements based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing st^dards generally accepted in 
the United States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrpller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements are free of material .misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the amounts.and disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
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accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Ochsner Health System and its 
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013, and the results of its consolidated operations, changes in 
its net assets and its c^h flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

Report of Other Auditore on December 31,2012 Consolidated Financial Statements 

The consolidated financial statements of Ochsner Health System and its subsidiaries for the year 
ended December 31, 2012, were audited by other auditors who expressed an unmodified opinion 
on those statements on April 29, 2013. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing,Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we also have issued our report dated April 
29, 2014, on our consideration of Ochsner Health System and its subsidiaries' internal control 
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is Xo 
describe the scope of our testing ofintemal control oyer financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compli^ce. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Ochsner Health System and its subsidiaries' 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

April.29, 2014 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(In Thousands) 

December 31 
2013 2012 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Assets limited as to use required for current liabilities 
Patient accounts receivable - net 
Accounts receivable other 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses and other ciiitent assets 
Estimated third-party payor settlements 

Total current assets 

Assets limited as to use: 
By Board for capital improvements, charity, 

research and other 
Under bond indenture agreements 
Underilban agreements' 
Under self-insurance trust fund 
Donor-restricted long-term investments 

Total assets limited as to use 
Less assets limited as to use required for current liabilities 
Noncurrent assets limited as to use 

Investments in unconsolidated affiliates, real estate, and other 
Property - net 
Goodwill 
Intangible assets 
Other assets 
Total 

$ 174,550 $ 47,863 
3,944 3,898 

196,598 192,469 
43,891 36,887 
37,110 35,234 
25,498 21,655 
17,778 15,104 

499;369 353,110 

324,766 320,902 
59,874 102,635 
5,075. 4,193 
8,651 11,253 

59,629 47,130 
457,995 486,113 

3,944 3,898 
454,051 482,215 

7,266 7,707 
746,960 672,684 
43,077 43,077 
11,433 11,433 
18,562 14,252 

$ 1,780,718 $ 1,584,478 
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December 31 
2013 2012 

Liabilities and net assets 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued salaries, wages, and benefits 
Deferred revenue 
Estimated third-party payor settlements 
Reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses 
Bonds payable - current portion 
Notes payable - current 
Long-term debt - cu^ent portion 
Other current liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

Pension and postretiremen! obligations 
Bonds payable 
Long-term debt 
Other long-term liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 4 and IS) 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

Total net assets 

Total 

See notes to financial statements. 

$ 103,326 $ 70,706 
118,465 98,693 
17,455 14,349 
6,627 12,812 
12,603 12,030 
5,925 5,635 

52,969 52,969 
13,708 6,230 
30,113 16,970 

361,191 290,394 

113^110 154,881 
572,156 577,765 
128,962 78,283 
21,544 22,214 

1,196,963 1,123,537 

518,441 404,480 
42,053 33,797 
23,261 22,664 

583,755 460,941 

$ 1,780,718 $ 

0
0
 0
0
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 
(In Thousands) 

Year Ended December 31 
2013 2012 

Unrestricted revenues: 
Patient service revenue - net of contractual 

allowances arid discounts 
Provision for bad debts 
Net patient service revenue, less provision for bad debts 
Premium revenue 
Other operating revenue 
Net assets released from restrictions used for operations 

Total unrestricted revenues 

Expenses: 
Salaries and wages 
Benefits 
Medical services to outside providers 
Medical supplies and services 
Other operating; expenses 
Depreciation and amortization 
Interest 

Total expenses 

Operating income (loss) 
Nonoperating gains and losses - investment and 

other realized gains and losses — net 
Nonoperating gaihs and los^s - unrealized gains on 

altemative investments 
Excess of revenues over expenses 

See notes to financial statements. 

$ 1,746,343 $ 1,5'58,383 
(91,384) (74.457) 

1,654,959 1,483,926 
278,483 292,945 
108,006 61,540 
2,916 3,217 

2,044,364 1,841,628 

937,801 872,402 
143,106 132,548 
115,812 134,793 
295,244 283,617 
398377 346,565 
90,099 75,884 
33,744 30,802 

2,014,683 1,876,611 

29,681 (34,983) 

22,868 45,626 

9,289 
$ 61,838 $ 10,643 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries • 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets 
(In Thousands) 

Year Ended December'31 
2013 2012 

Unrestricted net assets • 
Excess of revenues over expenses $ 61,838 $ 10,643 
Change in net unrealized gains (losses) excluding 

alternative investments 15,846 (7,648) 
Net assets released from restrictions used for 

capital acquisitions 1,091 685 
Pension related changes other than net periodic 

pension costs 35,186 (24,025) 
Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 113,961 (20,345) 

Temporarily restricted net assets 
Contributions 8,538 4,952 
Investment income 3,725 1,955 
Net assets released from restrictions: 
Operations (2,916) (3,217) 
Capital acquisitions (1.091) (685) 
Increase in temporarily restricted net assets 8,256 3,005 

Permanently restricted net assets 
Contributions 597 III 
Increase in permanently restricted net assets 597 III 

Increase (decre^e) in net assets 122,814 (I7;229) 
Net assets - beginning of year 460,941 478,170 
Net .assets - end of year $ 583,755 $ 460,941 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
(In Thousands) 

Year Ended December 31 
2013 2012 

Operating activities 
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 122,814 $ (17;229) 
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets to net cash 

provide by operating activities; 
Pension related changes other than net periodic pension costs (35,186) 24,025 
Depreciation and amortization 90,099 75,884 
Provision for bad debts 91,384 74,457 
Amortization of deferred financing costs and d^ discounts 1,446 1,573 
Contributions restrict^ for long-term investments (587) (111) 
Loss from eqiiity-method investment; net of cash received 441 87 
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments, net of cash received (51,564) (30,918) 
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant, and equipment, net (16) 195 
Gain on insurance proceeds (5,406) -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions: 

Patient accounts r^ivable (95,513) (99,607) 
Other current and noncurroit assets (18,026) (2,369) 
Accounts' (^yable 34,407 (13,031) 
Accrued expenses ^d oth^ liabilities 23,389 (3,990) 

Net cash provide by operating activities 157,682 8,966 

Investing activities 
Purchases of assets whose use is limited and other investments (18,397) (12,069) 

Sales and maturities of assets whose use is limited and otho- investments 98,079 62,180 
Capital exp^ditiires (156,619) (123,676) 
Proceeds from as^t disposal 301 179 
Proceeds from insurance 6,604 -
Net cash used in investing activities (70;032) (73^386) 

Flnancingactivities 
Repaymmt of bonds payable and long-term debt (49,049) (11,318) 
Proems from long-term borrowings 90,750 58 
Payments of bond issue costs (1,933) -
Payments on capital lease obligations (1,318) (542) 
Proceeds.from contributions restricted for long-term investments 587 III 
Net cash'provided by (used in) financing activities 39,037 (11.691) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 126,687 (76,111) 
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 47,863 123,974 
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year S 174,550 $ 47,863 

Supplemental disclosures- cash paid for intaest (net of amounts capitalized) S 32.333 $ 30,226 
Siippleinental npncash investing and fioandng activities 
Property purchases'included in accounts payable s 15,072 $ 16,859 
Property purchases financed by capital leases and long-term debt $ 11,033 $ 7,589 

See notes 10 financial statements. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2013 and 2012 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Organization 

Ochsner Health System (CHS or Ochsner) is a not-for-profit, non-stock membership corporation 
and the parent company of Ochsner Clinic Foundation (OCF) and Ochsner Cominunity 
Hospitals (OCH). 

OCF, located in New Orleans, Louisiana,-is a not-for-profit institution, that either directly or 
through its fiilly owned affiliates, owns and operates an acute care hospital known as Ochsner 
Medical Center (OMC), an 11-story clinic building, a 143-room hotel and related medical 
facilities located on a main campus in Jefferson Parish at the western end of New Orleans 
(the Main Campus). It operates Ochsner Medical Center Westbank, and Ochsner Baptist Medical 
Center, as remote'campuses of Qcbsner Medical Center. It also owns and operates health centers 
throughout southeast Louisiana, owns a hospital in Baton Rouge that operates as 
Ochsner Medical Center Baton Rouge, owns a hospital in. Slidell, Louiriana that operates as 
Ochsner Medical Center - Northshore, operates a hospital in Raceland, Louisiana known as 
Ochsner St. Anne General Hospital, manages a hospital, in Houma, Louisiana known as 
Leonard J. Chabert Medical Center beginning in June 2013, and several fitness centers that 
operate as Elmwood Fitness Center. 

OHS is also the sole member of OCH, a not-for-profit organization that owns and operates 
Ochsner Medical Center Kenner. It also owns Ochsner.Medical Center Westbank and Ochsner 
Baptist Medical Center, which are leased to OCF and operate as remote c^puses of Ochsner 
Medical Center. 

Basis of Pr^ntation and Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). The consolidated 
financial statements include the accounts of OCF, OCH, and their wholly owned subsidiaries. 
All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation. The assets 
of any member of the consolidated group may not be available to meet the obligations of other 
members in the group, except as disclosed in Notes 6, 7, and 8. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

1. Summary of Significaiit Accounting Policies (continued) 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated 
financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 
theireporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include investments with a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased, excluding amounts whose use is limited by board designation, under bond indenture 
agreements, or under self-insurance agreements. 

Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of first-ih, first-out cost or market. 

Fledges Receivable 

Unconditional promises to give ̂  recognized as revenues at their feir values in the period 
received. Pledges receivable ^ recorded net of necessary discounts and allowances. 
The noncurrent portion of pledges receivable is recorded in other assets in the consolidated 
balance sheets. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

1. Summaiy of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Pledges receivable as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, are expected to be realized as follows 
(in thousands): 

2013 2012 

In one year orless $ li805 $ 1,111 
Between.one and five years 3,293 2,353 
Greater than five years 602 1,125 

5,700 4,589 
Less discount (ranging from 0.13%-4.5% at 

December31, 2013 and 2012, respectively) 
and allowance for uncollectible pledges (425) (471) 

Pledges receivable - net $ 5,275 $ 4,118 

Investments 

Investments held by OHS are included in assets limited as to use in the consolidated balance 
sheets. Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments 
in debt securities are measured.at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets. Investments also 
include investments in private equity funds, hedjge funds, real estate funds, offshore fund 
vehicles, fiinds of fuhds and common/collective trust fiinds structured as limited liability 
corporations or partnerships or tmsts. These investments are termed altemative investments in 
the notes tolhe consolidated financial statements and are accounted for under the equity method, 
which approximates fair value. Investment income or loss (including realized gains and losses on 
investments, interest and dividends) is included in the excess of revenues over expenses in 
unrestricted net assets (performance indicator) unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or 
law. Unrealized gains and losses on investments, other than alternative investments, are excluded 
from the excess of revenues over expenses. If management believes a decline in the value of a 
particular investment is temppraiy, the decline is included in unrealized losses on the 
consolidated statements' of operations. If the decline is evaluated as being "other than 
temporary/' the carrying value of the investment is written down and a realized loss is recorded 
in nonoperating gains and losses in the consolidated statements of operations. OHS recorded 
impairment charges on investment securities of approximately $100,000 and $68,000 for the 
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

1. Summaiy of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Assets Limited as to Use 

Assets limited as to use primarily include assets held by trustees under indenture agreements, 
investments restricted by donors, and designated assets set aside by the Board of Trustees 
(the Bo^d) primarily for future capital improvements, over which the Board retains control and 
may at its discretion subsequently use for other purposes. Amounts required to meet current 
liabilities of OHS have been classified in the consolidated balance sheets as current assets. 

Property - Net 

Property improvements and additions are recorded at cost and capitalized and depreciated on the 
straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows: 

Years 

Land improvements 5-25 
Buildings and building improvements 10-40 
Leasehold improvements 12-20 
Equipment, furniture, and fixtures 2-20 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

OHS evaluates the carryirig value of long-lived assets to be held and used when events and 
circumstances warrant such a review. The carrying value of a long-lived asset is considered 
impaired when the anticipated undiscounted cash flow from such asset is separately identifiable 
arid is less than its carrying value: In that event, a loss is recognized based on the amount by 
which the carrying value exceeds the fair market value of the long-lived asset. Fair market value 
is determined primarily using the anticipated cash flows discounted at a rate commensurate with 
the risk involved. Losses on long-lived assets to be disposed of are determined in a similar 
manner, except that fair market values are reduced for the cost to dispose. There were no 
impairment charges for the years ended December 31,2013 and 2012. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Capitalization of Interest 

pHS capitalizes interest expense on qualifying construction in progress expenditures based on an 
imputed interest rate estimating OHS' average cost of borrowed funds for the project. 
Such capitalized interest becomes pait of the cost of the related asset and is depreciated over it's 
estimated useful life. Capitalized, interest costs totaled approximately $2,607,000 and $5,275,000 
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 

Goodwill and intangible assets, consisting primarily of trade name and employment contracts, 
were recorded as a result of Ahon Ochsner Medical Foundation's merger with Ochsner Clinic 
LLC'in 2001, which resulted in creation ofOCF. Goodwill.represents the excess ofthe fair value 
of the consideration conveyed in the acquisition over the fair value of net assets acquired. 
Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets arising from business combinations are not 
amortized, but rather are tested for impairment at least annually at the reporting unit level. 
Impairment is the condition that exists when the carrying amount of goodwill or int^gible assets 
exceeds its implied fair value. Additional impairment assessments may be performed on an 
interim basis if OHS encounters events or changes in circumstances that would indicate that it is 
more likely than not that the carrying value of goodwill or intangible assets has been impaired. 
OHS has selected October 31 as its annual testing date. OHS has deteimined that its reporting 
unit is OCF. The first step in the impairment process is to determine the feir value of the 
reporting unit and then compare it to the carrying value, including goodwill. If the fair value 
exceeds the carrying value, no further action is required and no impairment loss is recogniiz^d. 

Deferred Revenue 

OHS, through OCF, engages in research activities funded by contracts from U.S. Government 
agencies and other private sources. Revenue related to grants and contracts is recognized as the 
related costs are incurred. Amounts received from grant and contract; sponsors for which OCF 
has not yet fulfilled its obligations are recognized in future periods once the obligations have 
been satisfied. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

1. Summaiy of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Deferred Financing Costs 

In connection with the Issuance of bonds and long-term debt by OOF and OCH, certain financing 
costs were capitalized, and are being amortized over the respective lives of the bonds and long-
term debt. These costs are approximately $8,911,000 and $7,238,000 net: of accumulated 
amortization at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and are included in other assets in the 
consolidated balance sheets. 

Estimatied Workers* Compensation, Prof^ional Liability, and Employee'Health Claims 

OHS is self-insured for workers* compensation, professional liability, and employee health 
claims. The provisions for estimated workers* compensation, professional liability, and 
employee health claims include estimates for the ultimate costs for both reported claims and 
claims incurred but not reported in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 450, Contingencies. These estimates 
incorporate OHS past experience, as well as other considerations, including the nature of claims, 
industry data, relevant trends, and the use of actuarial information. 

Accounting Tor Pension and.Other Postretirement Plans 

OHS recognizes the overfiinded or underfunded status of its pension and other postretirement 
plans as^ asset or liability in its consolidated bailee sheets. Changes in the funded status of 
the pension and other postretirement plans are reported as a change in unrestricted net assets 
presented below the excess of revenues over expenses financial statement line item in the 
consolidated statements of operations in the year in which the changes occur. 

Reinsurance 

Ochsner System Protection Company (OSPC) relies on reinsurance to limit its retained property 
insurance risk. In entering into reinsurance agreements, management considers a variety of 
factors including the creditworthiness of reinsurers. In preparing its financial statements, 
management makes estimates of amounts receivable from reinsurers, which includes 
consideration of amounts, if any, estimated to be uncollectible by management based on an 
assessmehl of factors including an assessment of the creditworthiness of the reinsurers. OSPC 
cedes 100% of the underlying risk and as a result, OSPC retains no insurance risk. However, 
OSPC is not relieved of its primary obligation and is subject to credit risk of its reinsurers. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

i. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Included.in accounts receivable other in the consolidated balance sheets is reinsurance receivable 
on unpaid losses which includes estimated amounts of unpaid losses and loss adjustment 
expenses, which are expected to be recoverable from reinsurers pursuant to reinsurance 
agreements. Such amounts Have been estimated using actuarial assumptions consistent with those 
used in establishing the related liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses. As of 
December 31, 2013 ^d 2012, reinsurance receivables totaled approximately $12,603,000 and 
$10,030,000, respectively. 

Property Insurance Liabilities 

OSPC's liability for losses and loss-adjustment expenses include an amount determined on an 
undiscounted basis from loss reports and individual cases and an amount, based on past 
experience, for losses incurred but not reported. Such liabilities are necessarily based on 
estimates and, while management believes that the amount is adequate, the ultimate liability may 
be in excess of or less than the amounts provided. The methods for making such estimates and 
for establishing the resulting liability are continually reviewed, and any adjustments are reflected 
in earnings currently. The reserve for losses and loss-adjustment expenses, reported net of 
re^eiyables for salvage and subrogation, totaled approximately $12,603,000 and $12,030,000 at 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Liabilities are recognized for known claims (including the cost of related litigation) when 
sufficient information has been developed to indicate the involvement of a specific insurance 
policy, and management c^ reasonably estimate its liability. In addition, liabilities have been 
established to cover additional exposures on both known and unasserted claims. Estimates of the 
liabilities are reviewed and updated continually. Developed case law and adequate claim history 
do not.exist for such claims, especially because significant uncertainty exists about the outcome 
of coverage litigation and whether past claim experience will be representative of future 
claim experience. 

Temporarily/and Permanently Restrict^. Net Assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by OHS has been limited by donors lb a 
specific time period or purpose. Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donOrs 
to be maintained by OHS in perpetuity. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Consolidated Statement of Operations 

For purposes of presentationj all revenues and expenses are reported as operating except for 
investmentjincome and other gains and losses - net, which is reported as nonoperating. 

Net Patient Service Revenue 

Net patient service revenue is recognized as services are performed and is reported at the 
estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services 
rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with 
third-party payors. Amounts CHS receives for treatment of patients covered by governmental 
programs such as Medicare and Medicaid and other third party payore such as health 
maintenance organizationsj preferred provider organi^tipns and other private insurers are 
generally less than the OHS' established billing rates. Additionally, to provide for accounts 
receivable that could become uncollectible in the future, OHS establishes an allowance for 
doubtful accounts to reduce the carrying value of such receivables to their estimated net 
realizable value. Third-^party liability accounts are pursued until all payment and adjustments are 
posted to the patient account. For those accounts with a patient balance after third-party liability 
is finalized or accounts for uninsured patients, the patient receives statements and collection 
letters. P^ients that-express ah. inability to pay are reviewed.for potential sources of financial 
assistance including our charity care policy. If the patient is deemed unwilling to pay, the 
account is written-off as bad debt and transferred to an outside collection agency for additional 
collection effort. Accordingly, the revenues and accounts, receivable reported in OHS' 
consolidated financial statements are recorded at the net amount expected to be received. 
Retroactively calculated contractual adjustments arising under reimbursement agreements with 
third-party payors are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are 
rendered and are adjusted as frnalsettlements are determined; 

Charity Care 

OHS provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without 
charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Records of charges foregone.fpr services and 
supplies funiished under the charity care policy are maintained to identify apd monitor the level 
of charity care provided. Because OHS does not pursue collection of amounts determined to 
qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue. OHS estimates its costs of care provided 
under its charity care programs by applying a ratio of direct and indirect costs to charges to the 

I3IO-IISS824 15 



Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

gross foregone charges associated with providing care to charity patients. OHS* gross charity 
care charges include only services provided to patients who are unable to pay and qualify under 
OHS* charity care policies. The ratio of cost to charges is calculated based on OHS- total 
expenses divided by gross patient reyenue. During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, 
the estimated costs incurred by OHS to provide care to patients who met certain criteria under its 
charity care policy were approximately $55,583,000 and $52,580,000, respectively. 

Community Benefit 

Since December 2010, Ochsner and four other health care providers have formed collaborations 
with the State ^d several units of local government in Louisiana (Jefferson Parish Hospital 
Service District No. 1, Jefferson Parish Hospital Service District No. 2, Natchitoches Hospital 
District No. 1, Jefferson Parish Hum^ Services Authority, Terrebonne Parish Hospital Siervice 
District #1, Southern Regional Medical Corporation, Hospital Service District No. 3 of the Parish 
of Allen, The Parish Hospital Service District for the Parish of Orleans - District A, and Savoy 
Medical Center) to more fiilly fund the Medicaid program (the Program) by formirig ten 
non-profit organi^tions with the purpose to create a vehicle to provide services to low income 
and. needy patients. Expenditures recorded by OHS to fund the Program for the years ended 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, were approximately $48,755;,000 and $20,445,000, respectively, 
and are included in other operating expenses in the consolidated statements of operations. 

Provision and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

Effective January I, 2011, OHS adopted the provisions of.Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 
No. 2011-07, Presentation arid Disclosure of Patient Service Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts, 
and the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts for Certain Health Care Entities. ASU 2011-07 
requires the presentation of revenues net of the provision for doubtful accounts. 

To provide for accounts receivable that could become uncollectible in the future, OHS 
establishes aii allowance for doubtful accounts to reduce the carrying value of such receivables to 
their estimated net realizable value. The primary uncertainty lies with uninsured patient 
receivables and deductibles, co-payments or other amounts due &om individual patients. 
Payment pressure from managed care/indemnity payors also affects OHS' provision for doubtful 
accounts: Although OHS typically experiences ongoing managed care payment delays and 

1310-l1SSh4 16 



Ochsner Health.System and Subsidi^ies 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

1. Summary of Significant-Accounting Policies (continued) 

disputes; OHS continues to work with these payors to obtain adequate and timely reimbursement 
for services provided. There are various factors that can impact collection trends, such as 
changes in the economy, which in turn haye an impact on unemployment rates and the number of 
uninsured' and underinsured patients, the volume of patients through OHS- emergency 
departments, the increased burden of co-payments and deductibles to be made by patients with 
insurance, and business practices related to collection efforts. These factors continuously change 
and can have an impact on collection trends and the estimation process. 

OHS has an established process to determine the. adequacy of the allowance for doubtful 
accounts that relies on a number of analytical tools and benchmarks to arrive at a reasonable 
allowance. No single statistic or ̂ measurement determines the adequacy of the allowance for 
doubtful accounts. Some of the analytical tools that OHS utilizes include, but are not limited to, 
historical cash collection experience, revenue trends by payor classification and revenue days in 
accounts receivable. Accounts receivable are written off after collection efforts have been 
followed;in accordance with OHS' policies. 

The allowance for doubtful accounts due from patients was 9.2% and 6.9% of the accounts 
receivable balance at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The allowance for doubtful 
accounts due from managed care/indemnity payors was 10.1% and 11.7% of the accounts 
receivable balance at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

A summary of activity in allowance for doubtful accounts is as follows (in thousands): 

Accounts 
Balance at Provision for Written Ofi^ 

Beginning of Doubtful Net of Balance at 
Year Accounts Recoveries End of Year 

Year Ended December 31,2012 $ 77,398 $ 74,457 $ (86,966) $ 64,889 
Ye^.Ended December 31,2013 64,889 91,384 (92,451) 63,822 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Gonsolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

HIT Incentive Payments and Other Benefits 

Beginning in 2012, OHS through OGF achieved compliance with certain of the health 
information technology (HIT) requirements under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 
of 2009 (ARRA). As a result, OCF recognized approximately $14,400,000 and $7,210,000 in 
other operating revenue in the consolidated statements of operations for 2013 and 2012, 
respectively, for electronic health record (EHR) incentives related to Medicaid and Medicare 
progr^s. These incentives partially offset the operating expenses OCF has incurred and 
continues to incur from its investment in HIT systems. At DecemberBl, 2013 and 2012, 
OCF has approximately $1,765,000 and $4,310,000, respectively, included in accounts 
receivable other in the consolidated balance sheets related to these incentives. These incentives 
paitially offset the operating expenses OCF has incurred and continues to incur to invest in 
HIT systems. OHS accounts for EHR incentive payments under the grant accounting model as 
grants related to income. Medicare and Medicaid EHR incentive payments are recognized as 
revenue after OHS has determined it is reasonably assured to comply with the meaningful use 
criteria over the entire applicable compliance period. OHS' compliance with the meaningful use 
criteria is subject to audit'by the federal government. 

Exc^s of Revenues Over Expenses 

The consolidated statements of operations include excess of revenues over e}q)enses, which 
represents OHS* perfonmnce indicator. Changes in unrestricted net assets, which are excluded 
from excess of revenues over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include unrealized 
losses on investments, contributions used to acquire property and equipment, and pension related 
changes other than net periodic pension costs. 

DoDOr-Restricted Gifts 

Unconditional promises to give cash and^other assets are reported at fair value at the date the 
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as either temporarily or 
permanently re^ricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of 
the donated assets, When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction 
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net'assets are reclassified as 
unrestricted net assets aiid reported in the consolidated statements of operations as net assets 
released from restrictions. Contributions for which restrictions are met in the same period in 
which the unconditional promise to give is received are recorded as unrestricted revenue. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

1. Summary of Signiflcant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments other than Investments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by OHS in estima^ting the fair value of its 
financial instruments: 

Current Assets and Liabilities 

OHS considers the carrying amounts of fmancial instruments classified as current assets and 
liabilities to be a reasonable estimate of their fair values. 

Bonds Payable 

The fair values of OHS* revenue bonds are ba^d on currently traded values of similar financial 
instmments ̂  di^losed in Note 7. 

Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt 

OHS considers the carrying yalue of its notes payable and long- term debt to approximate fair 
value at December 31, 2013, due to the variable nature of the interest rate or based on a 
comparison of its fixed rates to current market rates. 

Income Taxes 

OHS and its subsidiaries qualify as tax exempt organi^tions under Section 501(a) and are 
described in Section ,501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and are exempt from Federal and 
State income taxes. Management ahhiially reviews its tax positions and has determined that 
there are no material uncertain tax positions that require recognition in the accompanying 
bailee sheets. 

Goncentration of Credit Risk 

OHS grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and are 
msured under third-party payor agreements. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

i. Summaiy ofSignificant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Risks and Uncertainties 

OHS' business could be impacted by continuing price pressure on new and renewal business, 
OHS* ability to effectively conUoj health care costs, additional competitors entering OHS' 
markets, and Federal and. State legislation in the area of health care reform. Changes in these 
areas could adversely impact OHS' operations in the future; 

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA), signed into law on March 23, 2010, has 
created significant changes and will continue to create significant changes for health insurance 
rnarkets for the next several years. Specificaliy, many of the near-term changes were effective for 
certain groups and individuals on their first renewal on or after September 23, 2010, including a 
prohibition on lifetime limitSi certain annual limits, member cost-sharing on specified preventive 
benefits, pre-existing condition exclusions for children, increased restrictions on rescinding 
coverage and extension of coverage of dependents to the age of 26. Most of the provisions of 
ACA with more-significant effects on the health insurance marketplace, bpth^state and federal, 
went into effect on January 1, 2014, including a requirement that insurers guarantee the issuance 
of coverage to all individuals regardless of health status, strict rules on how health insurance is 
rated, the assessment of new taxes and fees (including annual fees on health insurance 
companies), the creation of new insurance exchanges for individuals and small groups, the 
availability of premium subsidies for certain individual products, and substantia] expansions in 
eligibility for Medicaid. 

Despite significant preparation for the advent of the new federal and state health insurance 
exchanges, there have been rriany technical difficulties in^the implementation of the exchanges, 
which entail uncertainties associated whhmix and volume of business. In addition, there have 
been other materia! changes and delays in the implementation of ACA that could have a material 
adyerse effect on GHS' results of operations, financial position, and cash flows. These include; 

• Delay in the effective date of the employer mandate from 2014 to 2015; 

• Extension of the 2013 open enrollment period to December 23, 2013, for a January 1, 
2014, effective date; 

• Delay of the commencement of the 2014 open enrollment period from October 15 to 
November 15 through January 15, 2015; and 

• Other yet to be announced changes and delays. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

We are unable to predict the full impact of the ACA on our future revenues and operations at this 
time due to the law's complexity, the limited amount of implementing regulations ^d 
interpretive guidance, uncertainty regarding the ultimate number of uninsured patients who will 
obtain insurance coverage, uncertainty regarding future negotiations with payers, and gradual or 
potentially delayed implementation. However, we expect that several provisions of the AGA 
could have a material effect on our business. Any reductions to our reimbur^ment under the 
Medicare and Medicaid programs by the AGA could adversely affect our business and results of 
operations to the extent such reductions are not offset by increased revenues from providing care 
to previously uninsured individuals. 

Reclassification 

Gertain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2013 presentation. 
These reclassifications related to the presentation of certain.amounts within the balance.sheet or 
statement of operations and had no impact on total assets, liabilities or changes in net ^ets. 

2. Investments and ASC;820>10, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures 

ASG 820 establishes a common definition for fair value to be applied to U.S. GAAP requiring 
use of.fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about 
such fair value measurements. ASG 820 establishes a hierarchy for ranking the quality and 
reliability of the information used to determine fair values. ASG 820 requires that assets and 
liabilities carried at;fair yalue be classified and disclosed in,one ofthe following three categories: 

Level I — Unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2- Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, 
unadjusted quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in market's .that are not 
active, or inputs other than quoted prices are observable for the asset or liability. 

Level 3 ~ Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

OHS endeavors to utilize the best available information in measuring fair yalue. Financial assets 
and liabilities are classified based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement. Transfers into and transfers out of the hierarchy levels are recognized as if they 
had taken place at the end ofthe reporting period. There were no transfers between Level 1 and 
Lever2 in the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

2. Investments and ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures {coniinaed) 

Assete and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value 

Recurring Fair Value Measurements 

The fair value of assets measured at estimated fair value on a recurring basis are estimated as 
described in the preceding section. These estimatedTair values and their corresponding fair, value 
hierarchy in accordance with ASC 820 are summarized as follows (in thousands): 

December 31, 2013 
Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using 

Quoted Prices in Significant 
Active Markets for Other Significant 
Identical Assets and Observable Unobservable Total 

Liabilities Inputs Inputs Estimated 
(Level 1) (Level2) (Level 3) Fair Value 

Money market fuhds^'^ $ 87,114 $ $ $ 87,114 
Fixed income investments^'^ 54,746 — — 54,746 
Marketable equity, securities^'^ 193,433 — — 193,433 
Absolute retum^'^ 8,328 — 8,328 
Natural resources and other^'^ 22,870 - 22,870 
Total $ 366,491 $ $ $ 366,491 

December 31, 2012 
Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using 

Quoted Prices in Significant 
Active Markets for Other Significant 

Identical Assets Observable Unobservable Total 
and Liabilities Inputs Inputs Estimated 

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair'Value 

Money market. fimds^"^ $ 119,836 $ $ $ 119,836 
Fixed income investments^'^ 47,222 - — 47,222 
Marketable equi^ securities^'^ 146,945 - — 146,945 
Natural resources and othCT^'^ 18,186 - - 18,186 
Total $ 332,189 $ $ $ 332,189 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

2. Investments and ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (continued) 

Alternative investments and.other investments of approximately $92,940,000 and $155^545,000 
at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, are not included in these tables since they are 
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and not measured at fair value. Real estate 
investments of $6,079,000 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, are not included'in these tables since 
they are accounted for at cost. 

Valuation of these securities classified as Level 1 is based on unadjusted quoted prices in 
active markets that are readily and regularly available. Investments classified as Level 1 
include mutual funds that are publicly traded. Valuation of these funds , is based on umdjusted 
quoted prices in active markets that are readily and regularly available. 

Investment income and other gains and losses are classified as nonoperating and are comprised 
of interest and dividend income of approximately $6^931,000 and $6,051,000 (net of exjpenses of 
approximately $944,000 and $930,000 for the years ended December ^!, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively), unrealized gains on alternative investments of approximately $9^289,000 and $0, 
and realized liet gains arid losses on sales of securities of approximately $15,937,000 and 
$39,575,000 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Unrealized gains 
(losses) on investments recorded at fair value are included in other changes in unrestricted 
net assets. 

Atternative Investments 

Ahemative investments include private equity funds, hedge funds, real estate funds, offshore 
fund vehicles; funds of funds and common/collective trust funds structured as limited liability 
corporations or partnerships or trusts. These funds invest iii certain types of financial 
instruments, including, among others, futures and forward contracts, options, and securities sold 
not yet purchased, intended to hedge against changes in the market value of investments. 
These financial instruments, which involve varying degrees of off-balance-sheet risk, may result 
in loss due to changes in the market (market risk). 

Investment Impairment 

The investment securities on which the impairment charge was recorded were primarily equity 
securities, which are carried at fair value with changes in unrealized gains and losses generally 
beirig recorded as adjustments below the performance indicator. The fair value of investments is 
based on quoted market prices. Upon management's review and evaluation of the individual 
investment securities, management, deemed the market decline for certain investment securities 
to be "other^than-temporary." The related adjustment to fair value for these investment securities 
was recognized as realized losses as a part of the performance indicator. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

2. Investments and ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (continued) 

Investment in Equity Investees 

OHS' investment in unconsolidated affiliates at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and its income 
from equity investees for the years then ended are as follows (in thousands); 

Investment Equity |n Income 
Ownership in Equity (Loss) of Equity 

2013 Interest Investees Investees 

Southeast Louisiana Homecare LLC 
Louisiana Extended Care Hospital of 

Kenner, LLC 

25% $ 

25 

2,305 $ 

458 

,(262) 

421. 
$ 2,763 $ 159 

2012 

Investment Equity in Income 
Ownership in Equity ofEquity 

Interest Investees Investees 

Southeast Louisiana Homecare.LLC 
Louisiana Extended Care Hospital of 

Kenner^ LLC 

3. Patient Accounts Receivable 

25% $ 

25 

2,701 $ 

497 

392 

160 
$ 3,198 $ 552 

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, OHS' patient accounts receivable bailees were due from the 
following sources (in thousands): 

2013 2012 

Managed care/indemnity 
Govemment agencies 
Patients 
Total 
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 
Patient accounts receivable - net 

$ 166,134 $ 145^833 
74,262 79,494 
20;024 32,031 
260,420 257,358 
{63;822) (64,889) 

$ 196,598 $ 192,469 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

4..Property - Net 

OHS' investment in.property at December 31, 2013 and 2012, is as follows (in thousands): 

2013 2012 

Land and improvements 
Buildings and leasehold improvements 
Equipment, &rniture, and fixtures 
Building and building improvements held for lease 
Construction in progress 
Total property - at cost 
Less accumulated depreciation 
Property - net 

$ 86,744 $ 86,142 
575,262 541,786 
980,867 899,913 
41,436 15,024 
62,983 44,942 

1,747,292 1,587,807 
(1,000,332) (915,123) 

$ 746^960 $ 672,684 

Depreciation and amortization expense totaled approximately $90,099,000 and $75,884,000 for 
the years'ended December 3L 2013 and 2012, respectively; 

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, OHS has purchase commitments totaling approximately 
$12,730,000 and $27,431,000, respectively, toward additional capital expenditures. 

5. Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets 

As stated in Note 1, on Au^st31, 2001, OCF and the Clinic effected a merger transaction 
resulting in the net assets of the Clinic being acquired by Alton Ochsner Medical Foundation. 

The cost to acquire the Clinic was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed 
according to their estimated fair values. In addition, the carrying values of certain other assets 
and liabilities of the Clinic were changed to reflect management's estimate of fair value under 
purch^ accounting. 

Amounts recorded as goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets as of Deciember 31, 2013 
and 2012, are as follows (in thousands): 

2013 2012 

Goodwill 
Trade name - Intangible assets 

$ 43,077 $ 43,077 
$ 11,433 $ 11,433 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

6. Noties Payable 

OCF has a lo^ agreement with a bank which provides a credit line with maximum borrowings 
of $53,000,000. The line of credit currently expires on June 22, 2014. Borrowings under the 
arrangement, are unsecured, however OCF must meet certain financial covenants. Management 
believes OCF was in compliance with these covenants at December 31, 2013 and 2012. 
At December 31, 20l3 and 2012, OCF had borrowings outstanding under this arr^gement of 
$52,969i000; The interest rate on outstanding borrowings is based on LIBOR and, consequently, 
fluctuates from month to month. The rate on outstanding indebtedness under this arrangement 
was 1.67% and 1.71% at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. All amounts are classified 
as current at December 31, 2013'and 2012. 

7. Bonds Payable 

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, bonds payable consisted of the following tax-exempt revenue 
bonds issued by the Louisiana Public Facilities Authority (LPFA) on behalf of OCF and OCH 
(in thousands): 

2013 2012 
OCF Series 2007-A issued September 2007, due 

serially 2009-2047, annual interest rates ranging 
from 5.00% to.5.50% - $ 363,635 $ 368,420 

OCH Series 2007-B issued September 2007, due 
serially 2009-2047 annual interest rates ranging 

-from 5.00% to 5:50% 74,745 75,595 
OCF Series 2011 issued May 2011, due serially 
:2017-2023, then on term in 2031, 2037 & 2041, 
at annual interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 6.75% 150,000 150,000 

Total 

Less current pibrtion 
Less unamortized net bond discount 
Nbncurrent portion of bonds payable 

588,380 594,015 

5,925 5,635 
10,299 10,615 

$ 572,156 $ 577,765 
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Notes to Consblidaited Financial Statements (continued) 

7; Bonds Playable (continued) 

the Series 2007-A aiid Series 2011 bonds are general obligations of OGfj while the 
$eries 2007-B bonds are general obligations of QGH. All present and future accounts receivable 
of OCF are pledged to repayment of both the 2007-A and 201:1 l^hds. the GiCH Series :20b7-B 
bonds ^e guaranteed by OCF through a Joint and Several Guarantee Agreement (Gu^antee 
AgreementX swured by a mortgage ^d security interest ,ih all present and future accounts 
receivable 6f.0GF - s ^ well .as a pledge of revenues. Uridef the Gu^'nt^ AgreeniCTt, OGF will 
bebbligated to pay the guaranteedbonds^should QGH fajl to pay. OGH is obligated to reimburse 
OGF for any amount OGF has to pay under the guaranty; and the reimbursement.obligation is 
secured byarmortgageahdsecurity interest on certain assetsofOCH and its subsidiaries. 

Also, under the terms,ofthe bond indenture; OCF andlOGH are required to make certain deposits 
of principal and interest with atnjstee.,Such deposits are included with assetsUimitedas to use,in 
the-cpnsolidated financial statements. The bond indentureral^ places limits?onithe incurrence of 
additional borrowings by OGF and requires that OGF satisfy certain ihea^fes of financial 
performance as long as the bonds are outstanding. Management is not aware of any 
npncpmpliance with these requirements. 

At December'31, 2013, scheduled repayments of principal and sinking:fuhd installmentis to retire 
the bonds payable are^ follows'(in thousands): 

Years ending December 31: 
2014 $ 5,925 
2b i 5 6,230 
2016 6,550 
2017 ' 8,990 
2018 9,390 

Thereafter 551,295 
$ 588,380 

The estimated fair value, of the Series 2007-A, Series .2007-6, and Series-2011 bonds as pf 
December-31, 2013 and 2012, is approximately $601,117,000 and $655,891,000, respectively. 
This fair value is based on quoted market prices for similarly rated healthcare revenue bond 
issues, a Level 2 input.-
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

8. Long-Term Debt 

A summary of long-term debt at December 31, 2013 and 2012, is as follows (in thousands) 

2013 2012 
Notes payable, originally due October 2014 but prepaid on 

December 31, 2013 $ - $ 21,844 
Note payable, including interest at three-month LIBOR 

less 2.35% (0.50% at December 31, 2013 and 2012) 
due February 2015 22,000 22,000 

Working capital note, due May 2016, including interest 
at rates vaiying:frbm 0.76% to 1.54% during 2013 
with a rate of 1.07% as of December 31, 2013 8,293 8,204 

Loans on land and building, originally due April 2015 
but preprid as of December 31, 2013 —• 15,640 

Note payable 4.61% Senior Secured Note, entered into 
March 2013, due March 2033 6,837 — 

Note payable 5.26% Senior Secured Note, entered into 
December 2013, due March 2028 63,000 — 

Promissory Note entered into December 2013, due 
December;2020 with interest at 2.0% plus 30-day 
LIBOR rate 20,750 — 

Software and equipment loans, due varying dates 
in 2016 and 2017 22;517 17,787 

Total long-term debt 143,397 85,475 

Less unamortized discount 727 962 
Less current portion 13,708 6,230 
Ndncurreiit portion of long-term debt $ 128,962 $ 78,283 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

8. Long-Term Debt (continued) 

New Market Tax Credits 

In 2007, PCH entered into three separate loans in the form of notes payable with three ^parate 
lenders totaling $25 million. The loans are eligible for federal income tax credits uiider the 
New Markets Tax Credits program implemented by Congress in December 2000. 
Borrowings under the notes payable bear interest at three-raiorith LIBOR less 2.25% (0% at 
December 31, 2013 and 2012). Principal and interest payments are due in quarterly installments 
which commenced on October 1, 2007 and were originally due October 2014, but prepaid on 
Decembers!, 2013. Each of the loans is guaranteed by OCF through the Guarantee Agreement 
discussed.in Note 7. 

In 2008, OCH entered into a loan in with a financial institution in the form of a note payable 
totaling $22 million. Tht loan is eligible for the same federal income tax credits as the 
aforementioned $25 million loan. Borrowings under the note payable bear interest at three-month 
LIBOR less 2.35%, subject to a 0.50% floor (0.50% at December;31, 2013 and 2012). Interest 
payments are due in quarterly installments which commenced on April I, 2008 and mature in 
February, 2015. The principal paymerit.is due in one lump sum on the maturity date. This loan is 
guaranteed by OCF through the Guarantee Agreement discussed in Note 7. 

St. Anne 

On May 1, '2006, OCF entered into jease and management services agreements with Lafourche 
Parish Hospital Service District No. 2 (Lafourche), who owns and operates St. Anne General 
Hospital and related facilities (St. Anne) of Raceland, Louisiana. Under the agreements, OCF 
leases the St. Anne buildings and facilities, purchased working capital and certain equipment of 
St. Anne's and operates the hospital for a specified period of time (see further discussion at 
Note 13). As part of the agreement^ OCF entered-into an unsecured note payable with Lafourche 
for the purchase of its working capital and equipment for $7,100,000. On December 31, 2010, 
OCF and Lafourche executed an amendment in which the,principal and all accrued and unpaid 
interest of $8,029,000 became the new principal amount of the note and the note was extended 
for five years to a .maturity date of May 1, 2016. The interest rate on the working capital note, 
based on the 5-Year Yield Tax Exempt Insured Revenue Bond Rate published by Bloomberg, 
was 1.07% and 0.61%at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

8. Long-Term Debt (continued) 

March 2013 Note Payable 

Pur^nt to OGF*s purchase of two Medical Office Buildings on November 15, 2012, OCF 
entered into a loan in the principal amount of $7 million on March 12, 2013. The loan is secured 
by first mortgage Hens on medical office building properties at 1850 East Gause Boulevard 
(Northshore Medical Office Building 1) and 105 Medical Center Driye (Northshore Medical 
Office Building 2), both in Slidell, Louisiana and both in close proximity to Ochsner Medical 
Center - Northshore. The loan is in the form of a Senior Secured Note bearing interest at the 
fixed annual fate of 4.61%. Principal and interest payments are due monthly based upon a 
20-year (240 month) amortization period and actual/360 day interest period. 

December 2013 Note Payable 

OCF entered into a loan in the principal amount of $63 million on December 30, 2013. The loan 
is secured by first mortgage liens on OCF facilities at 2005 Veterans Memorial Boulevard, 
Metairie, Louisiana and 1950 Gause Boulevard, Slidell, Louisiana. The loan is in;the form of a 
Senior Secured Note bearing interest at the fixed annual rate of 5.26%. Principal and interest 
payments are.:due monthly based iipon a I S-year (180 month) amortization period and'actual/360 
day interest period. 

December 2013 Promissory Note 

OCF entered into an unsecured loan with a fmancial institution (the Loan) in the principal 
amount of $20.75 million on December 31, 2013. The Loan is in the form of a promissory note 
bearing stated interest of 30-day LIBOR plus 2.00%; Principal and interest payments are due 
mOrithly based upon a 15-year (180 month) fixed principal payment amortization period with the 
balance of the outstanding principal due on a 7-year maturity date of December 30, 2020, and 
actual/360 day interest; period. As part of a program to manage interest rate risk, OHS entered 
into an interest rate swap agreement entered into on December 19, 2013, effective as of 
December 30, 2013, OCF pays 1.97% fixed interest rate on the outstanding notional amount 
based on the outstanding principal balance of the loan to the counter-party and receives the 
floating anfiouiit of the 30-day LIBOR rate as of the date of rate-set. The effect of the swap 
agreerhent'is to fix OCF's interest rate on the loan at 3.97%. 
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Ochsher Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

8. Long-Teitn Debt (continued) 

At December 31, 2013, scheduled repayments of |ong<erm debt are as follows (in thousands): 

Years ending December 31: 
2014 .$ I3i708 
2015 33,600 
2016: 18;6()0 
2017 8,140 
201^ 5.844, 

tlhereaftef 63;505 
$ 143,397 

9..£nipl^ee Benefit Plans ̂ 

Defined^Benefit Pension Plan 

^rtain empjoyees of OCF and its subsidi^iesr^e covered under a defined tenefit pension plan 
(the Defined Benefit Plan). The Defined Benefit Plan is noncontributory and provides benefits 
that are based pii the participants' credited service and average compensation during the last 
five years of coverediemploymerit. As of December 31, 2006, benefit accruals ceased for all plan 
participants under age 40 and those over age 40 who elected to freeze theiiv retirement 
plan benefits. OGF made an additional change to the Defihed Benefit Plan and as of 
December 31, 2009, benefit acchials cease for all plan p^icipahts liridef age 55 with less than 
10 years of service (rounded to the nearest 6 months). Physician/executive p^icipants are %)zen 
as of December 31, 2009, regardless of age and service. Participants who are not frozen as of 
pecember;31, ,2009^ c^ accrue benefits until the earlier of age 65 or December-31, 2014. 
No new participants:are allowed to enter.the DefinediBenefit Plan: Gontributionsfare-intended to 
provide;not:orily .for benefits attributed to service to date but also; for those expected to be earned 
in the future. OGF m^es contributions to its qualjfied plan that Mtisfies the minimum funding 
requirements under Erhpipyee RetirementTiicome Security Act of 1974. These contributions are 
intended to provide not only for benefits attributed to services rendered to date but also those 
expected tb;;be e^ed m the Miire. 
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Gchsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

9. Employee Benefit Plans (continued) 

The following table sets forth the changes iii benefit obligations, changes in plan assets, and 
components of net periodic benefit cost (in thousands): 

Change in benefit obligation: 
Benefit obligation - beginning of year 

Serviceeost 
Interest cost 
Actuarial (gain) loss 
Benefits paid 

Benefit obligation - end of year 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets - beginning of year 

Actual retum on plan assets 
Employer contributions 
Benefits paid 

Fair value of plan assets - end of year 
Funded status 

2013 2012 

$ 504,635 $ 455,361 
1,348 1,661 

20,923 21,566 
(23,791) 45,197 
(19,040): (19,150) 
484,075 504,635 

362,547 321,242 
35,185 44,836 
6,255 15,619 

(19,040) (19,150) 
384,947 362,547 

$ (99,128)$ (142,088) 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

9. Employe Benefit Plans (continued) 

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance 
sheets consist of: 

Pensioned postretirement obligations - current portion 
Pension and postretirement obligations - noncurrent portion 
Unrestricted net assets 

Amounts recognized in unrestricted net assets: 
Net actuarial loss 
Prior service credit 
Total amounts reco^ized 

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized 
in unrestricted net assets: 

Net (gain) loss 
Reco^ized loss 
Recognized prior service credit 

Total amounts recognized 

2013 2012 

$ - $ 
(99,128) (142,088) 

N/A N/A 

155,958 190,864 
(20) (83) 

155,938 190,781 

(29,603) 27,782 
(5,303) (4,140) 

63 63 
$ (34;843) $ 23,705 

Weighted-aVerage assumptions used to determine projected benefit obligations at December 31, 
2013 and 2012, were as follows: 

2013 20X2 

Weighted-average discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 

4:83% 
Graded 

4.16% 
Graded 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

9. Employee Benefit Plans (continued) 

Net periodic pension cost for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, includes the 
following components (in<thousands) 

2013 2012 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Amortization of net loss 
Recognized prior service credit 
Net periodic pension benefit 

$ 1,348 $ 1,661 
20,923 21,566 

(29,373) (27,422) 
5,303 4,140 

(63) (63) 
$ (1,862>$ (118) 

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic pension cost for the years ended 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows: 

2013 2012 

Weighted-average discount rate 4.16% 4.85% 
Expected return on plan assets 8.30 8.50 
Rate of compensation increase Graded Graded 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Cohsblidated.Fihanciai Statements (continued) 

9. Employee Benefit Plans (continued) 

The fair values of the Defined Benefit Plan assets at December 31, 2013 and 2012, iu*e;as follows 
.(in thousMds):: 

December 31,2013^ 

'Money market 
Fixed ihconie.ihv^niei^^®^''^^'^^ 
Martetable equity sebunties^"^^^^®-
Absoli^e fetlffii— 
Private ^uity/venture'capital^'^^ 
Natural resources*'^*^^ 
Total 

Money market 
fixed income ihvestments^"^''L . 
Marketable equity securities^"^^^^®^ 
Absolute return^®' 
Private equity/ventoe'capital^®^ 
-Nati^I resources'®^''^®^ 
Tot^ 

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets for Significant 

Observable Other Significant 
Identical Assets Observable Unobservable Total 
(and.LiiabUlties Inputs Inputs Estimated 

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value 

$ 1'9,073 $ $ $ I9;073 
50,817 12,090 10^074 72,981 
77-500 39,917 35,549 152,966 

— 10il07 85,111 95,218, 
— — 18,389 18;389 

1931 - 7,089 26,320 
166;621 $ 62,114 $ 156,212 $ 384;947. 

December 31,2012, 
Fair Valne Measurements at Reporting Date Using 

Quoted Fnces in 
ActiveMarkets for Significant 

Observable Other Significant. 
Identical Assets Obseirable Unobservable Total 
(and Liabilities inputs Inputs Estimated 

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) FalrValue 

$ 41,966 $ $ $ 41,966 
118,630 21,427 —• 140i057 
55,887 47,174 25,629 128,(590 

- - 6,843 6;843 
- - 13,515 13,515 

12,025 12,714 6/737 31,476 
$ 228,508 $ 81,315 $ 52,724 $ .362,547 

V^uaubn of these,securiti^ classified as Level I is'based on unadjusted quoted prices in activeimarkets that 
we rwddy and regularly available. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

9. Employee Benefit Plans (continued) 

Represents funds! invested in common/collective trust funds or other alternative investments. Investments 
classified as Level 1 represent a fund that is publicly traded. Valuation of this fund is based on^iihadjusted 
quoted prices in active marked that are readily and regularly available. Level 2 classification ^represerits 
investments in common/collective trust funds or other alternative investment.funds and are classified based 
on.the nature of the underlying,investments of the fimd. The estimated feir value is based upon reported Net 
Asset Value (NAV) provided by fund managers and this value represente the amount at which transfers into 
and-out of the fund are affected. This fund provides reasonable levels of price transparency and can be 
corrobOTated through observable market data. 

In general, investments classified within Level 3 are alternative investments and use many of the same 
valuation.techniques and inputs as described above, including reported-NAV. However, if key inputs are 
unobservable, or if the investments are l«s liquid and there is very limited trading activity, the investments 
are generally classified as Level 3. The use of independent non-binding broker quotations to value 
investments generally indicates <there is a lack of liquidity or the general lack of transparency in the process 
to develop the valuation estimates generally causing these investments to be classified in Level 3. 
This category includes funds that, are invested in hedge fund and private equity investments that provide 
little or no price transparency due to the infi'equency with which the underlying assets tiade and generally 
require additional time to liquidate in an orderly manner. Accordingly, the values of these alternative asset 
classes are based on inputs that cannot be readily derived from or corroborated by observable market data 
and are based on.investments balances provided by fund.managers and adjusted for contributions and 
distributiom in the event such.balances pertain to an interim date/ The inv^ttneiit return for^e period in 
question is benchn^ked against investment vehicles which management determines reasonably 
approxiii^es the composition/nature of selected Level 3 investment. 

A roliforward of the fair value measurements for all assets.measured at estimated fair value on a 
recurring basis using significant unobservable (Level 3) inputs for the year ended December 31, 
2013, is as follows (in thousands): 

January 1, 
2013 Gains Purchases Sales 

December 31, 
2013 

Fixed income 
Equity securiti^ 
Absolute return 
Private equity/venture capital 
Natural resources 
Total 

$: - $ 74 $ 10,000 $ - $ 10,074 
25,629 9,920 _ — - 35,549 
6,843 5,308 80,000 (7,040) 85,111 
13,515 6,539 790 (2,455) 18,389 
6,737 531 522 (701) 7,089 

$ 52,724 $ 22,372 $ 91,312 $ (10,196) $ 156,212 
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Ochsner.Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

9;^£inployee:Benefit Plans'(continued) 

The Defined Benefit Plan assetrallocation as of the measurement date (December 31, 2013 ^d 
2012), ^d the target asset allocation, presented as a percentage of total plan a^setSj were 
as fbllows: 

2013 Target 
2013 'Allocation 2012 

Deblsecurhies 19% 20% 38% 
Equity securities 39 40 35 
Private equity/venture capital 5 2 4 
Hedge funds 25 30 2 
Natural resoiuces/REITs 7 8 9 
Other .5 — 12. 

Asset; allocations and investment performance ^e formally reviewed at regularly scheduled 
meetings several.times^during.'thei year, by the Investment Coihmittee of OCFl OCF utilizes' an 
inyestment coMuhant and multiple managers for different asset; classes. The Investment 
Goihmittee takes' ihto accbuht liquidity heeds ofthe plan to pay Benefits, in the short-term andithe 
anticipated long-teim obligations of the Defined Benefit Plan; 

The prim^ financial objectives of the Defined Benefit Plan are to: (I) provide a stream of 
relatively predictable, stable, and. coiutant earnings in support of the. Defined Benefit Plan'is 
anriual benefit obligations; and (2) preserve and ehKancethe real (inflationradjusted) value of the 
assets of the Defined .Benefit Perwion Plan. The long-term inVestiiient; objectives oftheDefined 
Benefit Pension Plan are to: (1) attain the average annual total return assumed in the Defined 
Benefit Plan*s most recent actuarial assumptions (net of inve^ment nianagement fees) over 
rolling five-year periods; (2) outperform the Defined Benefit Plan's custom benchnwk; and 
(3) butperform the median Teturn bf a pool bf retirement fiinds to be jdehtified in conjunction 
with OCF-s inyestment consultant. 

The^^set+aUocatipn is designed tb provide a diversified mix of asset classes including U.S. and 
foreigni equity securities, fixed income securities; real estate investmenf tnists, natural resources;, 
cash, md funds to hedge against deflation and inflatibh. Risk rhanagement practices include 
various criteria for each asset class including measurement against ^veral benchmarks; 
achievement of a.positiye risk adjusted retum^and inyestment guidelinesTbr each class of assets 
which enumerate types of iiivestrnent allowed in each category. 

I3I0-1155824 3 7 



Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

9. Employee Benefit Plans (continued) 

The OGF Retirement Plan Statement of Investment Policies and Objectives provides for a range 
of minimum and maximum investments in each asset class to allow flexibility in achieving 
expected long-term rate of retum. Historical return pattems and correlations, consensus return 
forecast and other relevant financial factors are analyzed to check for rea^nableiiess and 
appropriateness of the asset allocation to assure that the probability of meeting actuarial 
assumptions is reasonable. OGF Treasuty staff oversees the day-to-day activities involving 
assets of the Defined Benefit Plan and the implementation of aiiy changes adopted by the 
Investment Committee. 

OGF currently e)q)ects to make a contribution to the Defined Benefit Plan of approximately 
$22,000,000 in 2014. 

For 2013 and 2012, OCF's Defmed Benefit Plan had accumulated benefit obligations of 
approximately $483,219,000 and $502,820,000, respectively. 

The estimated net (gain) loss and prior service cost fOr the Defmed Benefit. Plan that will be 
amortized from accumulated unrestricted net assets into net periodic benefit cost over the next 
fiscal year is approximately $3,823,000 and $20,000, respectively. 

Future benefit payments expected to be paid in each of the next five fiscal years and in the 
aggregate for the following five years as of December 31, 2013, are as follows (in thousands): 

Years ending December 31: 
.2014 $ 24,627 
2015 25,793 
2016 27,157 
2017 28,140 
2018 ,29;251 

2019-2023 159,142 
$ 294,110 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

9. Employee Benefit Plans (continued) 

Defined Contribution Plans 

All employees of OCF and OCH meeting eligibility requirements may participate in the Ochsner 
Clinic Foundation 401 (k) Plan (the Plan). OCF and OCH may annually elect to make a 
retirement contribution on behalf of eligible employees in an amount up to 2% of the 
participant's annual eligible compensation. In addition, OCF and OCH may annually elect to 
make a match for eligible employees of 50% of the first 4% the employees contribute into 
their 40I(k). At December 31, 2013 and 2012, OHS has accrued approximately $20,625,000 
and $20,277,000 for matching contributions to the Plan for the 2013 and 2012 fiscal 
years, respectively. 

Gertam OCF employees are also covered under a 457(f) plan. The 457(f) plan was created to 
replace 100% ofthe benefit t^get for employees under age 65 as of December 31, 2009, whose 
benefits in the Defined Benefit Plan were frozen. The participant pays taxes at vexing and 
payout occurs at the Jater of age 65 or retirement. Participants of the 457(f) plan also p^icipate 
in the 401(k) confributions. OHS' consolidated balance sheets reflect a liability of approximately 
$10,341,000 and $8,666i^000:fprthe 457(f) plan at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively; 

Other Postretirement Benefitis 

OCF also provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired employees. 
OCF funds these benefits on, a pay-as-yourgo basis. The obligations under the po^retirement 
plan arei$l,968,000 and $2,349,000 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

10. Endowment Funds and Temporarily and Permanently R^tricted Net Assets 

OHS has 656 temporarily: restricted funds and 61 permanently restricted funds established for a 
variety ofpurposes. These.funds are classified and reported bas^ on the existence or absence of 
donor-imposed restrictions. Restricted net assets include funds dedicated to Medical Education, 
Nursing Education, Pastoral Care, Biomedical Research, Cancer Research, Cardiology Research, 
Transplant Research and Alzheimer's Research. 

ASC 95%-lQZ,Notrfor-Profit Entities: Presentation of Financial Statements, provides guidance 
on the net asset classification of donor-restricted endowment funds for a not-for-profit 
organi^tion that is subject to an enacted version of the Uniform Prudent Manageihent of 
Institutional,Funds Act of2006 (UPMIFA), which the state of Louisiana enacted on July 1, 2010. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

10. Endowment Funds and Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net-Assets 
(continued) 

UPMIFA requires OHS to classify the portion of each donor-restricted endowment fund that is 
not classified as permanently restricted net assets as temporarily restricted net assets 
(time restricted) until appropriated for expenditure. Temporarily restricted net assets available for 
appropriations at December 31, 2013 and 2012, total approximately $3,338,000 and $2,033,000, 
respectively. Management retroactively adopted UPMIFA as of January 1, 2009. 

UPMIFA also requires that OHS pre^rve the historic dollar value of the donor restricted 
endowed funds, Therefore, permanently restricted net assets contain the aggregate fair market 
value of: (1) an endowment fund at the time it became an endowment fund, (2) each subsequent 
donation to the fund at the time it is made, and (3) each accumulation made pursuant to a 
direction in the applicable gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. 

Restricted Net Assets as of December 31,2013, by Purpose 
Temporarily Permanently 

Restricted Restricted Total 

Research $ 9,660 $ 16,526 $ 26,186 
Education 4,952 3,258 8,210 
Other 27,441 3,477 30,918 
Total $- 42,053 $ 23,261 $ 65,314 

Restricted Net Assets as of December 31,2012, by Purpose 
Temporarily Permanently 

Restricted Restricted Total 

Research $ 6,313 $ 16,513 $ 22,826 
Education. 3,880 2;739 6,619 
Other 23,604 3,412 27,016 
Total $ 33,797 $ 22,664 $ 56,461 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

10. EndowmeDt Funds and Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net 
Assets (continued) 

Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of Fund as of December 31^2013 
Temporarily Permanenth^ 

tlnr^tri^^ R^tricted Restricted Total 
Donor-restricted funds $ $ 5,885 $ 23,261 $ 29,146 
Board-designated funds 1,360 — — 1,360 
Total $ 1,360 $ 5,885 $ 23,261 $ 30,506 

Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of Fund as of December 31,2012 
Temporarily Permanently 

Un restricts Restricts Restricted Total 

Donor-restiricted funds $ $ 2,839 $ 22,664 $ 25i503 
Board-derignated funds 2,500 — - 2,500 
Total $ 2,500 $ 2,839 $ 22,664 $ 28,003 

Changes.in Endowment Net Assets for the Year Ended December 31, 2013 
Temporarily Permanently 

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 

Beginning balance $ 2,500 $ 2,839 $ 22,664 $ 28,003 
Investment gain 449 3,247 3,696 
Contributions — 597 597 
Appropriations for 

expenditures (1,589) (201) (1,790) 
Ending balance $ 1,360 $ 5,885 $ 23,261 $ 30,506 
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10. Endowment Funds and Temporarilyiand Permanently Restricted Net 
Assets (continued) 

Changes in Endowment Net Assets for the Year Ended December 31,2012 
Temporarily Permanently 

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 

Beginning balance $ 2,283 $ 1,614 $ 22,552 $ 26,449 
Investment gain 264 1,586 - 1,850 
Contributions - — 112 112 
Appropriations for 

expenditures (47) (361) - (408) 
Ending balance $ 2,500 $ 2,839 $ 22,664 $ 28,003 

Funds with Deficiencies 

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment 
funds may fall below the level that the donor or current law requires OHS to retain as a fund of 
perpetual duration. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, deficiencies of this nature ̂ e reported in 
unrestricted net assets. Such deficiencies totaled approximately $0 and $94,000 as of 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Any such deficiencies resulted fixim unfavorable 
market fluctuations. 

Return Objectives and Risk Paranieters 

OHS has investment and spending practices for endowment assets that intend to provide a 
predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain 
the purchasing power of the endowment ^sets. Endowment assets include those assets of 
donor-reacted funds that OHS must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period(s) as 
well as board-designated funds. The policy allows the endowment assets to be invested in a 
manner that is intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield results of the 
allocation index while assuming a moderate level of investment risk. OHS expects its 
endowment funds to provide a rate of return that preserves the gift and generates earnings to 
achieve the endowment purpose. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

10. Endowment Funds and Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net 
Assets (continued) 

Strat^ies Employed for Achieving Objectives 

To satisfy'its long-term rate-of-retum objectives, CHS relies on a total return strategy in which 
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and 
interest and dividend income. CHS uses a diversified asset allocation to achieve its long-term 
return objectives within prudent risk constraints to preserve capital. 

Spending Policy and How the Investment Objective Relate to Spending Policy 

It is pHS* objective to establish a payout rate from endowment accounts that provides a stable, 
predictable level of spending for the endowed purposes that will increase with the rate of 
inflation, and to continue to invest in accordance with policy goals of providing for a rate of 
growth in the endowment earnings that meets or exceeds the rate of inflation. The annual 
spending appropriation will be subject to a minimum rate of 4% and a maximum rate of 7% of 
each endowment, funds' cuirent market value. Temporarily restricted net assets, along with other 
donor restricted funds, include the spending appropriation and investment income of the 
endowments and are pending appropriation for expenditure consistent with the specific purpose 
of the fond. 

11. Net Patient Service Revenue 

Net patient service revenue is recognized when services are provided. OHS has agreements with 
third-party payors that provide for payments to OHS at amounts different from its established 
rates. Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from 
patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered. 

A summary of the significant payment airangements with major third-party payors follows: 

Medit^reiand Medicaid 

Inpatient acute care services and defined capital costs related to Medicare program beneficiaries 
are paid.at prospectively determined rates per discharge. These rates vary according to a patient 
classification system that is based pn clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. Medicare inpatient 
rehabilitation services are also paid at prospectively determined rates per discharge, based on a 
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11. Net Patient Service Revenue (continued) 

patient classification system. Psychiatric seivices rendered to Medicare beneficiaries are 
reimbursed on a prospectively determined rate per day. Outpatient services to Medicare 
beneficiaries are paid on a prospectively determined amount per procedure. Medicare skilled 
nursing care is paid on a prospectively determined amount per diem based oh a patient 
classification system. The Medicare program's share of indirect medical education costs is 
reimbursed based on a stipulated foimula. The Medicare program's share of direct medical 
education costs is reimbursed based on a prospectively determined amount.per resident. Inpatient 
services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined per 
diem rates. Outpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are reimbursed on a 
cost basis subject to certain limits. 

OHS records retroactive Medicare and Medicaid settlements based upon estimates of amounts 
that are ultimately determined through annual cost reports filed with and audited by the fiscal 
intermediary. The difference between estimated and audited settlements is recorded as an 
adjustment to net patient service revenue in the year a determination is made. The favorable 
resolution of reimbursement issues under appeal by OHS is reported as an increase in net patient 
service revenue in the year the issue is resolved. 

As a result of retroactive settlements of certain prior year cost reports, OHS recorded changes in 
estimates during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. As a result of changes in prior 
year estimates, net patient service revenues increased approximately $6^786,000 and $981,000 in 
26l3iand 2012, respectively. 

Medicaid Supplemental Payment Program 

Since December 2010^ Ochsner and four other health c^e,providers formed collaborations with 
the State and several units of local government in Louisiana (Jefferson Parish Hospital Service 
Diste'ict No. 1, Jefferson Parish Hospital Service District No. 2, Natchitoches Hospital District 
No. 1, Jefferson Parish Human Services Authority, Terrebonne Parish Hospital Service District 
#1, Southern Regional Medical Corporation, Hospital Service District No. 3 of the Parish of 
Allen, The P^ish Hospital Service District for the Parish of Orleans - District A and Savoy 
Medical Center) to more fully fund the Medicaid program (the Progr^) by forming ten non­
profit organizations (Louisiana Clinical Services, Inc. (LCS), Southern Louisiana Clinical 
Services, Inc. (SLCS), Eastern Louisiana Clinical Services, Inc. (ELCS), Natchitoches Clinical 
Services, Inc. (NCS), Jefferson Clinical Services, Inc. (JCS), Metairie Physici^ Services, Inc. 
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11. Net Patient Service Revenue (continued) 

(MPS), Allen Clinical Services, Inc. (ACS), Savoy Clinical Services, Inc. (SCS), Lx)uisiana 
Family Services, Inc. (LFS), and Satyr Clinical Services, Inc. (SCS)) with the purpose to cre^e a 
vehicle to provide services to-low income and needy patients in the providers* communities. 

These collaborations enable the governmental entities to increase support for the Uncompensated 
Care Cost (UGC) program and for other Medicaid supplemental payments up to the state's 
federal Medicaid Upper Payment Limits (UPL). Each State's UCG and UPL methodology must 
comply with its State plan and be approved by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services 
(CMS). Federal matching funds are not available for Medicaid payments that exceed UPLs or 
UCG entitlement. Iri 2013 and 2012, OHS recognized $90,707,000 and $18,444,000, 
respectively, in net patient service revenue.related to the Program and recorded deferred reyenue 
of approximately $7,858^000 and $4,866,000 at December 31, 2013;and 2012, respectively. Such 
amounts are included in other current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. 

Humana Inc. 

OHS entered into a provider contract with Humana Inc. to provide services for its commercial 
and senior members on a fee-for-service basis for physician services and at prospectively 
determined rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, and prospectively 
determined daily rates for hospital services. Also, OHS provided services to approximately 
.30,000 senior members under a capitation contract for both physician and hospital services. 
Premium revenue from Humana Inc. under the capitation contract apprbrimated $278,483,000 
and $292,945,000 in 2013 and 2012, respectively, and is included in premium revenue in the 
consolidated statements of operations. Expenses for medical services to outside providers under 
the capitation contract approximated $115,812,000 and $134,793,000 in 2013 and 2012, 
respectively, and are included in medical services to outside providers in the consolidated 
statements of operations. Net revenue from Humana Inc. on a fee-for-service basis approximated 
$130,777,000 and $113,643,000 in 2013 and 2012, respectively, and is included in net patient 
service revenue in the consolidated statements of operations. 

Managed Care 

OHS has also entered into contractual arrangements with certain commercial insurance caifiers, 
health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. Inpatient and outpatient 
services rendered to managed care subscribers are reimbursed at prospectively determined rates 
per discharge, discounts from established charges, and prospectively determined daily rates. 
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11. Net PatieDt Semce Revenue (continued) 

OHS recognizes net patient service revenue associated with services provided to patients who 
have third-party payor coverage on the basis of contractual rates for the services rendered. For 
uninsured,patients that are not eligible for charity care, OHS recognizes revenue on the basis of 
its standard rates for services provided (or on the basis of discounted rates, if negotiated or 
provided by policy). Based on historical experience, a significant portion of OHS* uninsured and 
underinsured patients will be incapable or reluctant to pay for the services provided. Therefore, 
OHS records a significant provision for bad debts in theiperiod the services are provided related 
to patient receivables and deductibles, copayments, or other amounts due from individual 
patients that have been deemed unwilling to pay. 

The table below shows the sources of patient seirice revenue (net.bf contractuarallowarices and 
discounts), before provision for bad debts, for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, 
(in thous^ds): 

2013 2012 

Government agencies 
Patients 
Managed care/indemnity 
Patient service revenue^ net of contractual 

allowances and discounts 

12. Functional E^qienses 

OHS provides,general-heakh.care services primarily to residents within its geographic location^ 
Expenses related to providing these services for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, 
are as follows (in thousands): 

2013 2012 

Healthcare seirices 
Genera} and administrative 
Medical education 
Research 
Fitness centre 
Hotel 

$ 618,882 $ 515,303 
81,663 84,134 

1,045,798 958,946 

$ 1,746,343 $ 1,558,383 

$ 1,396,039 $ 1,352^587 
556,103 465,210 
37,075 34,838 
10,397 9,448 
11,999 11,568 
3,070 2,960 

$ 2,014,683 $ 1,876,611 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

13. Comihitments and Contingencies 

professional and GeneralXiability Insurance 

Professional and general liability claims have been asserted against OHS by various claimants. 
The claims are in various stages of processing and some may ultimately be brought to trial. 
Incidents occurring through December 31, 2013, may result in the assertion ofadditional.claims. 
OOP and OCH participate in a risk management program to provide for professional and general 
liability coverage. 

Under this program, OCF carries-professional and general liability insurance coverage for up to 
$65 million each of annual aggregate claims subject to certain deductible .provisions. OOP is 
self-insured with respect to the first $3,000,000 of each claim for professional liability with an 
aggregate exposure of $6,000,000. General liability claims are subject to a retention of 
$1,000,000 per claim and $2,000,000 aggregate. For Ochsner Medical Center-West Bank, 
Ochsner Baptist, and Ochsner Medical Center - Northshofe, the retention for professional 
liability claims are reduced to $1,000,000 per claim and $4,000,000 aggregate. Ochsner Medical 
Center - Baton Rouge and L J Chabert have separate policies that do not include retention. 

OCH carries professiohal and general liability insurance coverage for up to $65 million each of 
annual aggregate claims subject to certain deductible provisions. OCH is self-insured with 
respect to the first $1,000,000 of each claim for professional liability with an aggregate exposure 
of $4,000,000. General liability claims are subject to a retention of $1,000,000 per claini and 
$2,000,000 aggregate. 

Professional liability claims are limited by Louisiana statute to $500,000 per occurrence, the first 
$100,000 of which is payable by the health care provider and the remainder of which is payable 
by the Patient's Compensation Fund (the Fund) for participants in the Fund. The Fund was 
established by theiMedical Malpractice Act which was enacted in 1975 by the State of Louisiana. 
The Act established the Fund and limited recovery in medical malpractice cases to $500,000. 
The limitation on recovery has been challenged and, to date, successfully defended in the courts. 
Expenditures recorded by OHS for participation in the Fund.for the years ended December 31, 
2013 and 2012, were approximately $18,936,000 and $18,700,000, respectiveiy. 

OCF and OCH each Have an established trust fund held by a financial institution. Disbursements 
are made from the trust fund for self-insured professional and general liability claims, claims 
administration costs and legal fees. The amounts to be contributed to the trust funds are 
determined annually by an independent actuary. The trust fund assets for OCF and OCH in the 
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Ochsner Health System and. Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

13. Cbminitments and Gontingencies (continued) 

aggregate totaled approximately $8,651,000 and $11,253,000 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. The estimated liability recorded by OCF and OCH in the aggregate for claims, 
based on the actuarial report, is approximately $15,125,000 with estimated recoveries of 
$2,002,500 at December31, 2013, and $14,980,000 with estimated recoveries of $48,000 at 
December 31, 2012. The" estimated liability for OCF was discounted at a range of,2.5%-4.0% at 
both December 31, 2013 and 2012. The estimated liability for OCH was discounted at 2.0% and 
2.5% at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. If the risk management program is 
terminated, the trust fiind balances, if any, revert to OCF and OCH after satisfaction of 
outstanding claims. Any proceeds ftbm such a reversion would be used to reduce future costs for 
liability coverage. 

Estimated Workers* Compensation and Employee Hralth Claims 

OHS is self-insured for workers* compensation and employee health claims. The estimated 
liability for workers* compensation and employee health claims totaled approximately 
$15,893,000 and $11,657,000 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively: 

Lease Commitments 

OHS leases certain software equipment under capital leases. Capital lease assets are included in 
equipment, fiimiture, and fixtures in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 
and 2012, and are as follows (in thousands): 

2013 2012 

Software equipment 
Accumulated amortization 
Net carrying value of capital lease assets 

$ 8,484 $ 7,570 
(2,465) (869) 

$ 6,019 $ 6,701 

Amortization expense applicable to the capital lease asset is included in depreciation and 
amortization in the consolidated statements of operations. The capital lease obligations are 
included in other current and noncurrent liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

13. Conunitments and Contingencies (continued) 

Additionally, OHS leases assets under various rental agreements. OHS leases have varying 
terms, which may include renewal or purch^e options and escalation clauses that are factored 
into determining minimum lease payments. The following schedule summarizes OHS' future 
annual rninimum rental commitments on outstanding leases, as of December 31, 2013, 
(in thousands): 

Lease Obligations 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
liiereafler 
Total minimum lease payments 

Amounts representing interest 

Present Value of minimum lease payments 
Less current maturities 
Capital lease obligations - noncurrent 

$ 2,304 $ 27,044 
1,763 18,465 
1,366 15,296 
1,3.66 9i690 
463 5,286 

— 27,420 
7,262 $ 103,201 

595 

6,667 
(2,053) 

$, 4,614 

Rent expense, which relates primarily to cancelable or short-term operating leases for equipment 
and buildings, was approximately $41,607,000 and $45,082,000 for the years ended 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

13. Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 

Operating Leases - Lessor 

OHS leases office space to other businesses. Lease terms generally range from one to four years, 
with options of renewal for additional periods. All such property leases provide for minimum 
annual rentals and all rental revetiue has been recorded oh a straight-line basis. Following is a 
schedule by years of future minimum rental payments under operating leases as of December 31, 
2013 (in thousands): 

Years ending December 31: 
2014 $ 2,755 
2015 2,114 
2016 1,103 
2017 673 
2018 538 
Thereafter 2,587 

Total minimum lease payments to be received $ 9,770 

Contingencies 

The health care ihdustiy as a whole is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, 
and local governments. Compliance with these laws and regulations can be subject to future 
government review and interpretation as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at the 
time. Such compliemce with laws and regulations in the health care industry has come under 
increased government scrutiny. OHS and its subsidiaries are parties to various legal proceedings 
and potential claims arising in the ordinary course of its business. Management of OHS believes 
the reseires it has established for these issues are adequate and does not believe, based on 
current facts and circumstances and after review with counsel, that these matters will have a 
material adverse effect on OHS* consolidated statements of financial position or results 
ofoperations. 

In September 2009, OCF indefinitely suspended operations at its in vitro fertilization (FVF) 
center due to the mislabeling of frozen embryos. There are 50 patients who have either filed a 
lawsuit or a claim before the Fund alleging mishandling in the labeling and storage ofembryos 
between 2004 and 2009. The Fund has taken the position that this liability is not covered by the 
Fund. However, these cases ^e covered by Ochsner's professional liability coverage. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

13. Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 

The plaintiffs requested class certification for four classes of plaintiffs: (1) all patients who ever 
underwent IVF at Ochsner; (2) all patients who had FDA issues with respect to donor eggs; 
(3) all patients who had frozen embryos at Ochsner Fertility Center when it closed; and 
(4) all patients with certain ̂ es of errors in documentation. The lower court granted two classes 
and reused to grant two other classes. The Louisiana 5th Circuit Court of Appeals decided there 
should be no class actions, and counsel for plaintiffs did not appeal that ruling. Since, class 
certification for all four proposed class actions has been denied, we have settled in mediation all 
but seven of the claims. Currently it appears that we have reached the $6 million self insured 
retentionTor the 2008 - 2009 policy period and we have so notified the carrier (both the claims 
and underwriting departments) by submitting our loss run report^^d supporting documentation 
to tender our defense and ongoing:ihdemhity payments. 

Tax Relief and Health Care Act of 2006 authorized a permanent program involving the use of 
third-p^y recovery audit contractors (RACS) to identify Medicare and Medicaid overpayments 
and underpayments made to providers. ^Cs are compensated based, on the amount of both 
overpayments and underpayments they identify by reviewing claims submitted to Medicare for 
correct coding and medical necessity. Payment recoveries resulting from RAC reviews are 
appealable through admini^ratiye and judicial precedes. Payment recoveries and denials 
resulting from RAC reviews can be appealed through administraitive and judicial processes, and 
management intends to pursue the reversal of adverse determinations where appropriate. 
In addition to overpayments that are not reversed on appeal, OHS will incur additional costs to 
respond to requests for records and to pursue the reversal of payment denials. OHS expects the 
RACs will continue to seek CMS approval to review additional issues. 

During "2010, OHS was fleeted for review by RAC auditors, which is ongoing as of 
December 31, 2013. Management of OHS believes that the reserves it has established based on 
preliminary results, included in estimated third-party payor settlements - net liabilities in the 
consolidated balance sheets, are adequate but cannot predict with certainty the impact of the 
Medicare and Medicaid RAC program on its future consolidated results of operations or 
cash flows. 

14. Subsequent Events 

OHS has evaluated subsequent events through April 29, 2014, the date the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements were available for issuance. 
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Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and 
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

The Board of Directors 
Warner L. Thomas, Chief Executive Officer 
Scott Posecai, Chief Financial Officer 
Ochsner Health System and.Subsidiaries 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Ochsner 
Health System rand , its subsidiaries (Ochsner Health System), which comprise the consolidated 
balance sheet as of December 31, 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, 
changes in net assets, aind cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
flniahcial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 29, 2014. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Ochsner Health 
System's internal control over financial reporting (internal conU'ol) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in.the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
the fmancialrstatemente, biit hot for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Ochsner Health System's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Ochsner Health System's internal control. 

K. deficiency'in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will hot be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining re^onable assurance about whether Ochsher Health System's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
haye a direct and material effect on the determination of finaiicial .statement counts. However, 
providing an opinion on compli^ce with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and. not to provide an opinion on the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

April 29,2014 
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Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance and Report on Schedule of 

Expendituires-of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 

TTie Board of Directors 
Warner L. Thomas, Chief Executive Officer 
Scott Posecai, Chief Financial Officer 
Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Ochsner Health System and its subsidiaries* (Ochsner Health System) 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of 
"Managenient and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Cdniplidnce Supplement that could have a 
direct and material eiffect on each of Ochsner Health System*s major federal programs for the 
year ended December 31, 2013. Ochsner Health System's major federal programs are identified 
in the summary of auditor's results isection of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned cd^. 

Management-s Responsibility 

Management Is responsible for compliance with the.requirements of laws, regulations, contracts 
and grants applicable to its federal programs. 

A udiior *s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Ochsner Health System's 
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements, referred to 
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
OMB Circular KA33, Audits of States. Local Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations. Those 
standards ^d OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a.test basis, evidence about Ochsner'Health System's 
compliance-with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for bur opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Ochsner 
Health System's,compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Ochsner Health System complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,2013. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Ochsner Health System is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance wiiii the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Ochsner Health System's 
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance 
with 0MB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing ah.opinion oh the effectiveness 
of internal control over compliance., Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Ochsner Health ,System's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does nof allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis, A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance-\s a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented^ or detected and corrected, on 
a timely \i^s\s. K significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of-deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a' material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify-all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider toi be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of 0MB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
puipose. 

Repoit on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 

We have audited the financial statements of Ochsner Health System as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2013, and have issued our report thereon dated April 29, 2014, which contained an 
unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of 
forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by 
OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is' 
the responsibility of m^agement and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting wd other records used to prepare the fihanciafstatements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the fmancial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards is fairly stated in all.irlaterial respects in relation to the financial statements as a 
whole. 

June 27, 2014 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended December 31, 2013 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Jbrougb Graolor/ 
Proeram Tlllc 

Federal 
CFDA 

Nnmber-

Pass-
Through Eutity 

IdcottfViue Number 

Research and 
DevelopmeBt 

Oldster 

Other 
Federal 

Expenditures 

Total 
rideral 

Expendtlurcs' 

U.S. Departoicnt of Agrfcoltore 
Direct Avvard: 

Delta Health Care Services Grant Program .10.874 $ $ 29.870 $ 29.870 
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture - 29,870 29,870 

U.S. Departmcot of Health and Homan Services 
Direct Awards: 

Stale Rural Hospital Flexibility'Ih'Ogram 
Small Rural Hospital Improvement Grant Program 
Affordable Care Act (ACA) Matenral, Infant and 

Early Childhood Home Visiting Program 
Health Care Innovation Awards (HCIA) 
National Center for Advancing Trahslational Sciences 
CaiKer Treatment Research 
Extramural Research Programs in the Neurosciences' 

and Neurological Disorders 

93.241 
93.301 

93.505 
93.610 
93.350 
93,395 

93.853 

: 189,490 
817,135 

38,089 

1,448 
7,660 

33,494 
1,015,970 

1,448 
7,660 

33,494 
1,015,970 

189,4^ 
817,135 

,38,089 

Pass-Through From: 
Sauthen Regional Medical Corporation 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
Investigations and Technical Assistance 

Southwest Louisiana Area Health Education Center 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

Investigations and Technical Assistance 
Total CFDA 93.2S3 

93.283 

93.283 

158070077B 

704940 

- 67,010 

54.263 

67,010 

54.263 

Pass-Through From: 
Sauthen Regional Medical Corporation 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
Investigations and Technical Assistance 

Southwest Louisiana Area Health Education Center 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

Investigations and Technical Assistance 
Total CFDA 93.2S3 - 121J73 121.273 

LouisiQna Stale University Health Sciences Center 
National Center for Research Resources 
National Center for Research Resources 

93.389 
93.389 

13-91^005 
12-91-007 

60,927 
3.185 

- 60,927 
3.185 

Total CFDA 93.3S9 64.112 - 64.112 

American College of Radiology Imaging Network 
Cancer Detection and Di^osis Research 
Cancer Detection and Dia^osis Research 

93.394 
93:394 

ACRIN6654 
547020 

141 
8:026 

- 141 
8:026 

Total CFDA 93.394 • 8:i67 - 8.167 

Radiation Therapy Oncology Croup 
Cancer Treatment Research 

North Central Cancer Treatment Grotp 
Cancer Treatmem Research 

American College of Surgeons Oncology Grmgj 
Cancer treatment Research 

93.395 

93.395 

93.395 

U1QCA0037422 

7UI0CA7600I-4& 
7U1DCA86004-2 

953 

458 

n.468) 

-

953 

458 

(1.468) 
Total CFDA 93.395 (57) - (57) 

Eastern Cooperative Oncology Group 
Cancer Control 
Cancer Control 

93.399 
93.399 

3U10CA37403-15 (1.815) 
176 

- (1.815) 
176 

Total CFDA 93:399 (1.639) - (1.639) 
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Gchsner Health System and Subsidises 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued) 

Federal GraDtor/Pas»:Tbrough Grantor/ 
Program Title 

Federal Pass- Research and Other Total 
CFDA Through Entity Development Federal Federal 

Nomhier Identifiring Nnmber Cluster Ei^nditures Eipcndltures 

U.S. Department of Health and Hnman Services (continued) 
Southedsieim Louisiana Area Health 

Education Center 
Strong Start for Mdthm and Newborns 93.611 CMS^lDI-12-001 S - $ 20.212 S 20.212 

Jo^ WtQ/ne Cancer Institute 
AR^ - Trans-NIH Recovery Act Research 3P01CA0I2582-

Support 93.701 35S1 3.673 - 3,673 
Louisiam Staie Uniyersity Health Sciences Center 

AR^ - Trans-I^ Recovery Act Research 3R0ICA121979-
Support 93.701 02SI 162 - 162 

American College of Radiology Imoffng Network 
ARRA - Trans-NIH Recovery Act Research 

Support 93.701 CA80098 102 - 102 
Seattle Institute for Cardiac Research 

ARRA - Trans-NIH Reirovery Act Research 
Support 93.701 1RC1HLI0062S (666) - (666) 

Totai'CFDA 93.701 3.271 - 3.271 . 

Louisiana Health Care Quality Forum 
ARRA - Health Info'tmation Technology Regional 

Extension Centers Program 93.718 90RC0049/0I - 87.686 87,686 

Louisiana Public Health Institute 
ARRA - Health Informatidn Technology -

Beacon Commuriities 93.727 Subaward368 12.806 12.806 
ARRA - Health Information Technology -

12.806 12.806 

Beacon Communities 93.727 Subaward367 - 8.448 8.448 . 
Total CFDA 93.727 - 21.254 21.254 

Tulane diversity Health Sciences Center 
C^ipvascular Diseases Re^arch 93.837 NOl-HC-35130 10.820 _ 10.820 

The University of Toledo 
10.820 10.820 

Cardiovascular Diseases Research 93:837 UI0HL071556 (8.239) - (8.239) 
Total CFDA 93 '837 2,581 - 2.581 

Louisiana Slate University Health Sciences Center 
Lung Diseases Research 93.838 08-64-068 48.304 - 48.304 
Lung' Diseases Research 93.838 08-64-024 819 - 819 

Total CFDA 93.838 49.123 - 49.123 

University of Medicine, and Dentistry of New Jersey 
Extramural Research Programs in the 

Neurosciences and Neurological Disorders 93.853 ROINS38384 7.014 _ 7.()I4 
University of Rochester 

7.()I4 

Extramural Research Programs in the 
Neurosciences and Neurological Disorders 93.853 5-24724 (4.439) - (4,439) 

Total CFDA 93.853 2.575 - 2.575 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued) 

Federal Pass- Research and Other Total 
Federal Grantor/Pas^Tbrough Grantor/ CFDA Tbrougb Entity Development Federal Federal 

Proeram Title Number Identifriiie Number Cluster ExDenditures Expenditures 

IJ.S. Department of Health and Hnroao Services (continued) 
The Board of Trusted of the University of Alabama 

Child He^th and Humw Development 
Extrmural Research 93.865 000378020-005 $ 74,737 $ $ 74,737 

Lotdsiahd Hospital Assdaation 
National Biptertdrism'Hospital Preparedness 2012-2013 

Program 93.889 (Round 11) - 127.959 127,959 

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 1,247,584 1.436.956 2.684.540 

Corporation for National and Community Service 
Pass-Through From: 

Greater New Orleans Foundation 
Social Iiinovatibn Fund 94.019 - - 21,023 21,023 

Total Corporation for National and Community Service - 21,023 21,023 

U.S. Department of Homdand Security 
Pass-Through From: 

State of Louisiana Governor's Office of Homeland 
Security and Emergency Prefktredness 

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 
(Presidehtially Declardl Disasters) 97,036 1104 - 368,033 368,033 

Disaster Grants- Public Assistance 
(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 1234 - 150,887 150,887 

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 
(f^identiaily Declared Disasters) 97.036 1056 - 119,599 119,599 

Disaster Granb - Pi^lic Assistance 
(Presidentially (glared Disasters) 97,036 1085 - 106,687 106,687 

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 
(Ihesidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 1138 - 67,082 67,082 

Disaster GrantsHl^blic Assistance 
(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 982 - 60,866 60,866 

Disaster Grants j- Public Assistance 
(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 1047 - 52,286 52,286 

Disaster Grants — Public Assistance 
(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 1455 - 25,827 25,827 

Disaster Grants- Public Assistance 
(PresidentiallylDeclared Disasters) 97.036 1084 - 19,352 19352 

Disaster Gi^ts - Public Assistance 
(PresidentiaJIy Declared Disasters) 97.036 1058 - 17,147 17.147 

Disuter Grants- Public Assistance 
^(Pr»identially Declared Disasters) 97.036 1081 - 12,495 12,495 

Di^nerGfwts-Public Assistance 
(Piesidentially Declared Disr^ers) 97.036 863 - 8,325 8,325 

DisasterGi^ts - Public Assistance 
(ih^i^n^ly Declared Disa^rs) 97.036 1304 - 7,452 7,452 

Dis^r Grants - Public Assistance 
(i^identially Declared Disasters) 97.036 1139 - 6,949 .6,949 

'Disaster^Grants-Public Assistance 
(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 1410 - 6,497 6,497 

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 
(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 865 3,863 3,863 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued) 

Federal Fass- Research and Other Total 
Federal GraDtor/Pass-Througli Grantor/ CFDA Tbrough Entity pmlopment Federal Federal 

Proeram Title Number Tdentifvlne Number Cluster Exoeoditarcs Expend itnres 

U.S. Dtpartratht of Homelaod Sconrity (coBtlnued) 
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 

(Presidentially DeclahHl Disasters) 97.036 864 $ $ 2>I0 $ 2,340 
Disaster Grants - Public A^istance 

(Preidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 .894 - i',864 1,864 
Disaster Grants - Public Asistahce 

(Piesidentiajly Declar^ Disasters) 97.036 929 - 1;838 1,838 
DisuterGranb-Public Assurance 

(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 862 - 1,425 1,425 
Disaster.Grants - Public Assistance 

(Piesidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 867 - 1.031 1,031 
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 

(Presideiitially Declared Disasters) 97.036 1029 - 1,022 1,022 
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 

(Pr«identially E)eclar^ Disasters) 97.036 866 - 956 956 
TotalCFDA 97.036 - 1.043.823 1.043.823 

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security - 1.043,823 i.043.823 
Total ExiTCnditivK of Federal Awards $ U47,584 $ 2.531.672 S 3.779.256 

accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures offederal awards. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended December 31,2013 

L General 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents expenditures for all federal programs 
that were in effect during the year ended December 31,2013. 

2. Basis of Accounting 

Expenditures are reported on the-accrual basis of accounting in accordancie with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles, with the exception of expenditures for Disaster Grants (see 
Note 4). The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 
0MB Circular A-I33, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or 
used in the preparation of, the financial statements. 

3. Subrecipient Awards 

Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, Ochsner Health System provided federal 
awards to subrecipients as follows: 

Program Amount 

National Center for Advancing Translational Sciences $ 40,602 
Healthcare Innovation Awards (HCIA) 68,807 

$ 109,409 

4; Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) 

In fiscal year 2013, Ochsner Health System received approval from the State of Louisiana 
Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness for reimbursement of 
$1,035,388 of eligible costs ̂ incurred in fiscal year 2012. These 2012 expenditures are included 
on the schedule of expenditures in the current year in accordance with guidance provided by the 
U.S. Department of Homeland Security based oii the date funds were obligated viersus expended. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended December 31^ 2013 

Part I - Summaiy of Auditor's Results 

Financial,Statements Section 

Type of auditor's report issued (unmodified, qualified, 
adverse, or disclaimer): 

Internal control over fihahciai reporting: 

Material.weakness(es) identified? 

Significant.deficiency(ies) identified? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements 
noted? 

Federal Awards Section 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 

Signific^t deflciency(ies) identified? 

Type of auditpr's.report issued on compliance for 
major programs (unmodified, qualified, adverse, or 
disclaimer): 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with section .510(a) of 0MB 
Circular A-133? 

Unmodifled 

yes 

yes 

yes 

X no 

X none reported 

no 

yes 

yes 

X no 

X none reported 

Unmodified 

yes no 
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Ochsner Health System Subsidiaries 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued) 

Fart 1 - Summary of Auditor's. Results (continued) 

Identification ofmajor programs 

CFDA NuniberCs) Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

93.610 Health Care Innovation Awards;(HCIA) 

97;036 Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentiaily 
Declared Disasters) 

Dollar threshold used to .distinguish between 
Type A and Type B'programs: $ 300,000 

Auditee qualified as lpwrrisk auditee? ^yes X .no 

Fart n -Financial S^temenf Findings Section 

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, nonconipiiaiice 
witii^ provisions of laws,, regulations, contracts and gmt agreements, and abuse related to the 
financial statements for which Government Auditing require repoitingfri a Circular 
Afl33 audit. 

No findings were noted. 

Part ni ̂ .Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs Section 

This section identifies the audit findings required to be reported by Circuit A-133 section 
.510(a) (for example, materiaf weaknesses, significant deficiencies,,and material instances of 
nbhcompli^ce, iricluding questioned costs), as well as any abuse findings involving federal 
awards that are matefiafto-a major program^ 

No findings were rioted. 
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Ochsner Health System and Subsidiaries 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Year Ended December 31,2013 

No prior audit findings. 
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